

Smlouva o poskytování služeb

Smluvní strany:

Ostravská univerzita

se sídlem: Dvořákova 7, 701 03 Ostrava

IČ: 619 88 987 DIČ: CZ61988987

zastoupená: doc. Mgr. Petrem Kopeckým, Ph.D., rektorem

bankovní spojení: ČNB, pobočka Ostrava

číslo účtu: 931761/0710

(dále jen "**objednatel**")

na straně jedné

а

BBM spol. s r. o.

se sídlem: Kocínova 138/5, 397 01 Písek

IČ: 40755592 DIČ: CZ40755592

zapsaná v obchodním rejstříku vedeném u krajského soudu v Českých Budějovicích,

spis. zn. 386/C.

zastoupena: Ing. Zdeňkem Marešem, jednatelem

bankovní spojení: Komerční banka a.s.

číslo účtu: 277847271/0100

(dále jen: "poskytovatel")

na straně druhé

uzavřely podle ust. § 1746 odst. 2 zákona č. 89/2012 Sb., občanský zákoník, ve znění pozdějších předpisů, níže uvedeného dne, měsíce a roku tuto smlouvu o poskytování služeb:



Článek I. Předmět smlouvy

- 1. Předmětem této smlouvy je závazek poskytovatele k poskytování služeb dle odst. 2) tohoto článku a závazek objednatele zaplatit poskytovateli sjednanou odměnu, a to za podmínek uvedených v této Smlouvě.
- 2. Poskytováním služeb se rozumí technická podpora licence Oracle Forms and Reports Processor Perpetual Software Update License & Support, CSI 23283302 pro 2 CPU od 30.11.2024 do 29.11.2025, a to v souladu s podmínkami technické podpory poskytovatele, jež tvoří přílohu č. 1 k této smlouvě.

Článek II. Doba plnění

1. Poskytovatel se zavazuje poskytovat služby dle čl. I v období od 30. 11. 2024 do 29. 11. 2025.

Článek III. Realizace služeb

- 1. Smluvní strany navzájem jsou si povinny poskytnout veškerou součinnost potřebnou k zajištění řádného poskytování služeb. Poskytovatel nese plnou odpovědnost za dodržování podmínek dle Přílohy č. 1 ze strany výrobce software a nese samostatně náklady na vymáhání souvisejících povinností dle těchto podmínek.
- 2. Osobou oprávněnou k jednání o realizaci služeb je za objednatele Ing. Tomáš Stodůlka, tel. 553 461 123, e-mail tomas.stodulka@osu.cz
- 3. Osobou oprávněnou k jednání o realizaci služeb je za poskytovatele Martin Krška, tel. 606 766 808, e-mail martin.krska@bbm.cz.
- 4. Změna oprávněné osoby podle tohoto čl. lze změnit na základě předchozího písemného oznámení bez nutnosti uzavírat dodatek k této smlouvě.

Článek IV. Cena za sjednané služby

1. Objednatel se zavazuje za poskytování služeb zaplatit celkovou smluvní odměnu ve výši:

bez DPH 98 000,- Kč

sazba DPH 21 %

DPH 20 580,- Kč s DPH 118 580,- Kč

2. Smluvní odměnu uhradí objednatel bezhotovostně na účet uvedený v záhlaví této smlouvy.





- 3. Cena obsahuje veškeré náklady pro realizaci předmětu smlouvy včetně nákladů souvisejících. Cena za poskytování služeb je stanovena jako nejvýše přípustná.
- 4. Poskytovatel vystaví daňový doklad fakturu ve lhůtě 14 dnů po uzavření této smlouvy. Splatnost faktury je 30 dní ode dne jejího doručení objednateli.
- 5. Daňový doklad faktura musí obsahovat všechny náležitosti řádného daňového a účetního dokladu ve smyslu příslušných právních předpisů, zejména zákona č. 563/1991 Sb., o účetnictví, ve znění pozdějších předpisů, zákona č. 235/2004 Sb., o dani z přidané hodnoty, ve znění pozdějších předpisů. Daňový doklad nesplňující předepsané náležitosti bude objednatelem vrácen do dne splatnosti daňového dokladu k doplnění či opravě, aniž se tak dostane do prodlení se splatností. Lhůta splatnosti počíná běžet znovu od opětovného doručení náležitě doplněné či opravené faktury objednatele.

Článek V. Odstoupení od smlouvy

- 1. Tato smlouva může být ukončena písemnou dohodou smluvních stran anebo odstoupením od smlouvy z důvodů stanovených v této smlouvě nebo v zákoně.
- 2. Od této smlouvy může smluvní strana odstoupit pro podstatné porušení smluvní povinnosti druhou smluvní stranou. Za podstatné porušení smluvní povinnosti se považuje zejména:
 - a) na straně objednatele nezaplacení ceny díla podle této smlouvy ve lhůtě delší než 30 dní po dni splatnosti faktury,
 - b) na straně poskytovatele, jestliže nebudou poskytovány služby dle čl. l. této smlouvy řádně a v dohodnutém termínu.
- 3. Odstoupení od této smlouvy musí být učiněno písemně. Účinky odstoupení od této smlouvy nastanou dnem, kdy bude písemné odstoupení smluvní strany odstupující doručeno druhé smluvní straně.

Článek VI. Ochrana informací

1. Smluvní strany se vzájemně zavazují, že budou chránit a utajovat před třetími osobami chráněné informace, dokumenty a skutečnosti, tvořící obchodní tajemství, které byly vzájemně stranami poskytnuty v rámci tohoto obchodního případu. Obchodní tajemství tvoří konkurenčně významné, určitelné, ocenitelné a v příslušných obchodních kruzích běžně nedostupné skutečnosti, které souvisejí se závodem a jejichž vlastník zajišťuje ve svém zájmu odpovídajícím způsobem jejich utajení.

Článek VII. Smluvní pokuty a náhrada škody

Ostravská univerzita / Dvořákova 7 701 03 Ostrava / Česká republika www.osu.cz / www.alive.osu.cz



- 1. Poruší-li smluvní strana povinnost uvedenou v ustanovení čl. VI. této smlouvy, je povinna zaplatit smluvní pokutu ve výši 5.000,- Kč za každé takové prokázané porušení.
- 2. Ujednáním o smluvní pokutě není dotčeno právo na náhradu škody způsobené porušením povinnosti, na kterou se smluvní pokuta vztahuje, a to ani v případě, že náhrada škody přesahuje smluvní pokutu.
- 3. Smluvní pokuta je splatná do 30 dnů od data, kdy byla povinné straně doručena písemná výzva k jejímu zaplacení ze strany oprávněné, a to na účet oprávněné strany uvedený v písemné výzvě.
- 4. V případě prodlení Poskytovatele s poskytnutím podpory podle této smlouvy a její přílohy, vzniká Objednateli nárok na smluvní pokutu ve výši 500,- Kč za každý den, kdy prodlení trvá.

Článek VIII. Závěrečná ustanovení

- 1. Smluvní strany se dohodly, že ostatní práva a povinnosti smluvních stran se řídí zákonem č. 89/2012 Sb., občanský zákoník, v platném znění a dalšími příslušnými právními předpisy.
- 2. Poskytovatel je oprávněn měnit podmínky uvedené v Příloze č. 1, a to výlučně za předpokladu, že během trvání smlouvy nedojde ke snížení úrovně technické podpory oproti původně sjednaným podmínkám. O těchto změnách je poskytovatel povinen informovat objednatele písemně předem. V případě rozporu či nejednoznačného výkladu Přílohy č. 1 v porovnán se zněním této smlouvy, bude směrodatné znění této smlouvy.
- 3. Smlouvu lze měnit a doplňovat pouze písemně, a to číslovanými dodatky. Právo na předložení dodatku ke smlouvě mají obě smluvní strany.
- 4. Smlouva je vyhotovena ve dvou stejnopisech, z nichž každá smluvní strana obdrží po jednom vyhotovení.
- 5. Objednatel je povinným subjektem dle zákona č. 340/2015 Sb., o registru smluv (dále jen "zákon o registru smluv"). Poskytovatel bere na vědomí a výslovně souhlasí s tím, že tato smlouva, podléhá uveřejnění v Registru smluv (informační systém veřejné správy, jehož správcem je Ministerstvo vnitra). Objednatel se zavazuje, že provede uveřejnění této smlouvy dle příslušného zákona o registru smluv.
- 6. Tato smlouva nabývá platnosti dnem podpisu a účinnosti nejdříve dnem uveřejnění smlouvy v Registru smluv. O této skutečnosti je Objednatel povinen uvědomit Poskytovatele, a to formou zaslání výpisu z Registru smluv.
- 7. Smluvní strany prohlašují, že smlouva vyjadřuje jejich svobodnou, pravou, srozumitelnou a vážnou vůli, a na důkaz čehož k ní připojují své podpisy.

Nedílnou součástí této smlouvy je Příloha č. 1 – Podmínky poskytování technické podpory ze dne 02.08.2024.



V Písku dne	V Ostravě dne		
Za Poskytovatele:	Za Objednatele:		
Ing. Zdeněk Mareš, jednatel	doc. Mgr. Petr Kopecký, Ph.D., rektor		



Oracle Software Technical Support Policies

Effective Date: 02-August-2024

Contents

1.	Overview	4
	Use of Services	4
2.	Support Terms	4
	Technical Support Fees	4
	Support Period	5
	License Set	5
	Matching Service Levels	6
	Reinstatement of Oracle Technical Support	6
	Pricing Following Reduction of Licenses or Support Level	7
	Custom Application Bundles	7
	Unsupported Programs	7
	Technical Contacts	7
	Program Updates	8
	Right to Desupport	8
	First and Second Line Support	8
	Third Party Vendor-Specific Support Terms	8
	Technical Support for Development, Demonstration and End User Licenses	9
3.	Lifetime Support	9
4.	Oracle Technical Support Levels	12
	Software Update License & Support	12
	Extended Support	14
	Sustaining Support	14
	Oracle Communications Network Software Premier & Sustaining Support	16
	Oracle Communications Network Software Support & Sustaining Support	18
5.	Additional Support Services Available for Purchase	19
	Incident Server Support Package	19
	Oracle Java Development Tools Support	20
	Oracle Developer Studio Tools Support	20
	Oracle Application Development Framework Essentials Support	20
	Java SE Support and Java SE Support For Independent Software Vendors	21
	Oracle Java Embedded Development Support and Oracle Java Embedded Suite	
	Development Support	21
	Oracle Solaris 10 Container Support	22
	NoSQL Database Community Edition Support	22
	Service Request Packages	22
	Customer Success Services	22
	Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite	23
	Oracle Hospitality Cruise Help Desk and Monitoring	24
	Global Payroll Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite	24

	Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM	
		25
	Legislative Updates for PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll Localizations	26
	Severity 1 Fixes for Fusion Middleware 11g	27
	Oracle Linux Support Services	29
	Oracle VM Support Services	29
	Oracle Verrazzano Support Services	29
	Oracle Utilities Live Energy Connect Programs Support	29
6.	Web-Based Customer Support Systems	30
	My Oracle Support	30
	Customer Support Portal for Hospitality and Food & Beverage	30
	Oracle Unbreakable Linux Network	30
7.	Tools Used to Perform Technical Support Services	30
8.	Global Customer Support Data Protection Practices	31
9.	Severity Definitions	32
10.	Hyperion and Agile Specific Support Terms	33
11.	Contact Information	34

1. OVERVIEW

Unless otherwise stated, these Software Technical Support Policies apply to technical support for all Oracle software product lines.

"You" and "your" refers to the individual or entity that has ordered technical support from Oracle or an Oracle-authorized distributor.

To receive technical support as provided by Oracle Support Services ("OSS") as described in these Oracle Software Technical Support Policies, all programs must be properly licensed.

Technical support is provided for issues (including problems you create) that are demonstrable in the currently supported release(s) of an Oracle licensed program, running unaltered, and on a certified hardware, database and operating system configuration, as specified in your order or program documentation.

Except as otherwise specified in this section, product release and supported platforms information for all Oracle programs, other than Nimbula and MICROS Systems programs (US Cruise only), is available through Oracle's web-based customer support systems as described in the Web-Based Customer Support Systems section below. Product release and supported platforms information for Nimbula programs will be provided to you in writing.

References to the Technical Support Policies in former Oracle, or vendors acquired by Oracle, agreements may vary (e.g., Software Support Services Terms and Conditions, Maintenance Services Policy, Standard Maintenance Program, product support policy, Support Services policies, Support Maintenance Agreement, Maintenance and Technical Support Agreement, Maintenance and Support Schedule 2.0, and Licensee Support Services Policy).

These Technical Support Policies are subject to change at Oracle's discretion; however, Oracle policy changes will not result in a material reduction in the level of the services provided for supported programs during the support period (defined below) for which fees for technical support have been paid.

To view a comparison of these Oracle Software Technical Support Policies and the previous version of the Oracle Software Technical Support Policies, please refer to the attached <u>Statement of Changes</u> (PDF).

Use of Services

Services may not be delivered to or accessed by or on behalf of individuals or entities in Venezuela, the Russian Federation, and Belarus, including, without limitation, the Government of Venezuela, the Government of the Russian Federation, and the Government of Belarus, nor may the Services or any output from the Services be used for the benefit of any such individuals or entities.

2. SUPPORT TERMS

Technical Support Fees

Technical support fees are due and payable annually in advance of a support period, unless otherwise stated in the relevant order or payment plan, financing or leasing agreement with Oracle or an Oracle affiliate ("payment plan"). Your payment or commitment to pay is required to process your technical

support order with Oracle (e.g., purchase order, actual payment, or other approved method of payment). An invoice will be issued only upon receipt of your commitment to pay, and will be sent to a single billing address that you designate. Failure to submit payment will result in the termination of technical support services. Technical support will be provided pursuant to the terms of the order under which it is acquired; however, technical support fees due under a payment plan are due and payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of such payment plan.

Support Period

Technical support is effective upon the effective date of your order unless stated otherwise in your order. If your order was placed through the Oracle Store, the effective date is the date your order was accepted by Oracle. Unless otherwise stated in the order, Oracle technical support terms, including pricing, reflect a 12 month support period (the "support period"). Once placed, your order for technical support services is non-cancelable and the sums paid non-refundable, except as provided in the relevant order. Oracle is not obligated to provide technical support beyond the end of the support period.

License Set

A license set consists of (i) all of your licenses of a program, including any options* (e.g., Database Enterprise Edition and Enterprise Edition Options; Purchasing and Purchasing Options), Data Enterprise Management programs* (e.g., Database Enterprise Edition and Diagnostics Pack), or self-service module* (e.g., Human Resources and Self-Service Human Resources) licensed for such programs, (ii) all of your licenses of a program that share the same source code**, or (iii) for Crystal Ball programs, the same licenses of a program contained on a single order, (iv) for Java Embedded Binary programs, all of the distributed units of the program(s) embedded in each unique Java Application Product pursuant to the Java Binary License and Redistribution Agreement ("BLRA") between you and Oracle, (v) if you are distributing Java Restricted Use Binary programs or if you are distributing Java Embedded Binary programs under the Oracle Java Platform Integrator program ("OJPI"), all of the end user's licenses of the program(s) embedded or included in the Java Application Product pursuant to the BLRA or (vi) a license of the same program regardless of it being purchased as a perpetual license or as a license subscription. Development and demonstration licenses available through the Oracle Partner Network or the Oracle Technology Network are not included in the definition of a license set.

*As specified on Oracle's price list.

**Programs that share the same source code are:

- Database Enterprise Edition, Database Standard Edition, Database Standard Edition
 One, Oracle Database Standard Edition 2 and Personal Edition
- Internet Application Server Enterprise Edition, Internet Application Server Standard Edition, WebLogic Server Enterprise Edition, WebLogic Server Standard Edition, WebLogic Suite, and Web Tier
- Oracle FLEXCUBE Core Banking programs
- Oracle FLEXCUBE Universal Banking for Retail programs
- Oracle FLEXCUBE Universal Banking for Corporate programs
- Oracle FLEXCUBE Lending & Leasing programs
- Oracle Daybreak programs
- Oracle Banking programs

If you are an Oracle partner and provide first line support to an end user (e.g., Embedded Software License ("ESL"), Application Specific Full Use ("ASFU"), or any other Oracle authorized provision of first line support), a license set consists of all of the end user's licenses of the program(s) embedded or included in the Application Package pursuant to the ESL Distribution Agreement, ASFU Distribution Agreement, or other distribution agreement between you and Oracle. If the end user also has Full Use licenses supported directly by you, then those Full Use licenses must also be supported at the same level as the ASFU or ESL licenses.

If Oracle is providing first line support for all of an end user's ASFU and Full Use licenses, then both the ASFU and Full Use licenses must be supported at the same level. However, if Oracle is providing first line support for an end user's Full Use licenses and you are providing first line support for the ASFU and/or ESL licenses, then the licenses would not be considered part of the same license set.

Matching Service Levels

When acquiring technical support, all licenses in any given license set must be supported under the same technical support service level (e.g., Software Update License & Support, Oracle Communications Network Premier Support, or unsupported). If you add Extended Support, you still must maintain Software Update License & Support for the entire license set; subject to availability, you must acquire Extended Support for all licenses of a particular version release of a program if you acquire Extended Support for any license in such version release. You may not support a subset of licenses within a license set; the license set must be reduced by terminating any unsupported licenses. You will be required to document license terminations via a termination letter.

Reinstatement of Oracle Technical Support

If technical support lapses or was not originally purchased with a program license, a reinstatement fee will be assessed. The reinstatement fee is computed as follows: (a) if technical support lapsed, then the reinstatement fee is 150% of the last annual technical support fee you paid for the relevant program; (b) if you never acquired technical support for the relevant programs, then the reinstatement fee is 150% of the net technical support fee that would have been charged if support had been ordered originally for the relevant program per Oracle's Support pricing policies in effect at the time of reinstatement. The reinstatement fee in (a) shall be prorated from the date technical support is ordered back to the date technical support lapsed. The reinstatement fee in (b) shall be prorated back to the original program license order date.

In addition to the reinstatement fee described above, you must pay the technical support fee for the support period. This technical support fee is computed as follows: (i) if technical support lapsed, then the technical support fee for a twelve month support period shall be the last annual technical support fee you paid for the relevant program; (ii) if you never acquired technical support for the relevant program, then the annual technical support fee shall be the fee that would have been charged if support had been ordered originally for the relevant program per Oracle's Support pricing policies in effect at the time of reinstatement. Renewal adjustments may be applied to the annual support fee described in (i) and (ii) above.

If you previously acquired technical support from an Oracle-authorized distributor and are now acquiring technical support directly from Oracle, an uplift may be added to the reinstatement fee and your technical support fee. If support is not reinstated for the entire license set or if support for a subset of licenses from an order is reinstated, then the "License Set", "Matching Service Levels", and "Pricing following Reduction of Licenses or Support Level" policies will apply.

Pricing Following Reduction of Licenses or Support Level

Pricing for support is based upon the level of support and the volume of licenses for which support is ordered. In the event that a subset of licenses on a single order is terminated or if the level of support is reduced, support for the remaining licenses on that license order will be priced at Oracle's list price for support in effect at the time of termination or reduction minus the applicable standard discount. Such support price will not exceed the previous support fees paid, plus any applicable country annual adjustments, for both the remaining licenses and the licenses being terminated or unsupported, and will not be reduced below the previous support fees paid for the licenses continuing to be supported. If the license order from which licenses are being terminated established a price hold for additional licenses, support for all of the licenses ordered pursuant to the price hold will be priced at Oracle's list price for support in effect at the time of reduction minus the applicable standard discount.

Custom Application Bundles

Technical support may not be discontinued for a single program module within a custom application bundle.

Unsupported Programs

Customers with unsupported programs are not entitled to download, or receive updates, maintenance releases, patches, telephone assistance, or any other technical support services for unsupported programs. CD packs or programs purchased or downloaded for trial use, use with other supported programs, or purchased or downloaded as replacement media may not be used to update any unsupported programs.

Technical Contacts

Your technical contacts are the sole liaisons between you and OSS for technical support services. Your technical contacts must have, at a minimum, initial basic product training and, as needed, supplemental training appropriate for specific role or implementation phase, specialized product usage, and/or migration. Your technical contacts must be knowledgeable about the Oracle supported programs and your Oracle environment in order to help resolve system issues and to assist Oracle in analyzing and resolving service requests. When submitting a service request, your technical contact must have a baseline understanding of the problem you are encountering and an ability to reproduce the problem in order to assist Oracle in diagnosing and triaging the problem. To avoid interruptions in support services, you must notify OSS whenever technical contact responsibilities are transferred to another individual.

You may designate one primary and four backup individuals ("technical contact") per license set, to serve as liaisons with OSS. With each USD\$250,000 in net support fees per license set, you have the option to designate an additional two primary and four backup technical contacts. Your primary technical contact shall be responsible for (i) overseeing your service request activity, and (ii) developing and deploying troubleshooting processes within your organization. The backup technical contacts shall be responsible for resolving user issues. You may be charged a fee to designate additional technical contacts.

Oracle may review service requests logged by your technical contacts, and may recommend specific training to help avoid service requests that would be prevented by such training.

Program Updates

Update means a subsequent release of the program which Oracle generally makes available for program licenses to its supported customers at no additional license fee, other than shipping charges if applicable, provided you have ordered a technical support offering that includes software updates for such licenses for the relevant time period. Updates do not include any release, option or future program that Oracle licenses separately. Updates are provided when available (as determined by Oracle) and may not include all versions previously available for a program acquired by Oracle. Oracle is under no obligation to develop any future programs or functionality. Any updates made available will be delivered to you, or made available to you for download. If delivered, you will receive one update copy for each supported operating system for which your program licenses were ordered. You shall be responsible for copying, downloading and installing the updates.

Right to Desupport

It may become necessary as a part of Oracle's product lifecycle to desupport certain program releases (including any embedded third-party programs for which support has been retired by the manufacturer or vendor of such programs for which, in Oracle's good faith determination, it is no longer practicable for Oracle to support) and, therefore, Oracle reserves that right. However, program releases that are expressly identified within Oracle's Lifetime Support policy will be governed by the terms of the Lifetime Support Policy. Desupport information is subject to change.

First and Second Line Support

You are required to establish and maintain the organization and processes to provide "First Line Support" for the supported programs directly to your users. First Line Support shall include but not be limited to (i) a direct response to users with respect to inquiries concerning the performance, functionality or operation of the supported programs, (ii) a direct response to users with respect to problems or issues with the supported programs, (iii) a diagnosis of problems or issues of the supported programs, and (iv) a resolution of problems or issues of the supported programs.

If after reasonable commercial efforts you are unable to diagnose or resolve problems or issues for the supported programs, you may contact Oracle for "Second Line Support". You shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Oracle with the necessary access (e.g., access to repository files, log files, or database extracts) required to provide Second Line Support.

Second Line Support shall consist of (i) a diagnosis of problems or issues of the supported programs and (ii) reasonable commercial efforts to resolve reported and verifiable errors in supported programs so that such supported programs perform in all material respects as described in the associated documentation.

Oracle may review service requests logged by your technical contacts, and may recommend specific organization and process changes to assist you with the above recommended standard practices.

Third Party Vendor-Specific Support Terms

You must remain on a supported environment – including applications and platforms – to receive technical support. If a vendor retires support for its product, you may be required to upgrade to a current certified and supported product, application, hardware platform, framework, database, and/or operating system configuration to continue receiving technical support services from Oracle.

Technical Support for Development, Demonstration and End User Licenses

Technical support for Development and/or Demonstration licenses is provided through your membership in the Oracle PartnerNetwork. Before you may provide technical support for a program you have licensed to an end user you must, in addition to the technical support you may receive for Development and/or Demonstration licenses, acquire technical support for such program from Oracle and continuously maintain it for as long as you provide support to the end user.

3. LIFETIME SUPPORT

Lifetime Support consists of the following service levels:

- Premier Support (also referred to as, and will be documented on your order as, "Software Update License & Support" or "Oracle Communications Network Software Premier Support")
- Extended Support (if offered)
- Sustaining Support

A description of the services available under Premier Support, Extended Support and Sustaining Support is included in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.

Premier Support for any given program release will be available for five years from the date that release of the Oracle program becomes generally available, as documented in the Lifetime Support coverage documents, except as noted below. At the end of the Premier Support period, either Extended Support or Sustaining Support will be available. Extended Support, if offered, may be available for an additional three years for specific program releases. An Extended Support fee applies for each support period, which is in addition to the standard Premier Support fee, except as noted below.

Alternatively, technical support may be extended with Sustaining Support, which will be available for as long as you continuously maintain and pay the annual fees for technical support for your Oracle program licenses.

For details on Lifetime Support coverage for specific program releases, including the service levels offered, and timeframes, refer to the following:

- For server technology programs view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Technology</u> Products
- For fusion middleware programs view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Fusion Middleware</u>
- For application programs view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Applications</u>
- For retail application programs view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Retail Applications</u>
- For Sun software and operating system products view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Sun Software and Operating System Products</u>
- For OFSS programs view: <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Oracle Financial Services</u>
 Software

General Exceptions

For Oracle Database releases designated as an "Oracle Database Innovation Release" in the Lifetime Support Policy and on ODSC, Premier Support will be available for two years from the generally available date. Please refer to the <u>Lifetime Support Policy: Coverage for Technology Products</u> document.

Exceptions for customers with a current support contract running:

1. **PeopleTools:** Patches and platform certifications for a PeopleTools release will be provided until 12 months after the next release is made generally available or Oracle announces that no future releases will be made. Quarterly Critical Patch Updates (CPUs) containing critical PeopleTools fixes and required security updates will be patched for a PeopleTools release for up to 24 months after the next release is made generally available.

You must apply PeopleTools minor releases in order to continue to receive Premier or Extended Support, if offered, for a PeopleSoft application program release. You may be required to apply PeopleTools minor releases to remain current with versions of third party technologies and products as supported by the provider of the third party product.

PeopleSoft application maintenance, which includes but is not limited to: images, patches, bundles, and maintenance packs, may require an upgrade to a newer version of PeopleTools. Oracle reserves the right to make changes to the third party products included in the PeopleTools program release which includes but is not limited to: (i) requiring newer versions of the third party products, (ii) changing the way in which third party products are packaged and distributed and (iii) replacing or remediating one or more third party products.

- **2. Oracle Database 10gR2:** For customers running Oracle Database 10gR2 on the IBM z/OS platform, after July 2013, Extended Support will continue to be available at Oracle's then-current Extended Support fees. Extended Support will be limited to Severity 1 fixes only; critical patch updates will not be made available.
- **3. Oracle Database Standard Edition 2:** Customers with a current support contract for Oracle Database Standard Edition 2 will continue to receive technical support for previously licensed Oracle Database Standard Edition or Oracle Database Standard Edition One program releases. License restrictions are as specified in the license definitions and rules of the Oracle Database Standard Edition 2 order.
- **4. Governance, Risk and Compliance Programs:** For Sustaining Support for the Governance, Risk and Compliance program releases specified below, Oracle will continue to provide Severity 1 fixes through May 2025.

PROGRAM	PROGRAM RELEASE
Application Access Controls Governor	8.x
Configuration Controls Governor	5.x
Enterprise Governance, Risk, and Compliance Manager	8.x
Enterprise Transaction Controls Governor	8.x
Fusion Governance, Risk, and Compliance Intelligence	3.x
Preventive Controls Governor	7.x

- **5. Java SE 8:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period March 2022 December 2030. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- 6. Oracle Financial Services Analytical Applications (OFSAA) 8.0: For the Platform 8.0, Compliance Management 8.0 and Enterprise Risk and Finance 8.0 products listed <u>here</u>, the Extended Support fee will be waived for the period January 2023 January 2025. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **7. Oracle Enterprise Manager Cloud Control 13.5:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2026. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **8.** Oracle Communications EAGLE Application Processor (EPAP) 16.4.1: The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period December 2021 through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **9. Oracle Communications LSMS 13.5.1:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period December 2021 through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **10. Oracle Communications LSMS Query Server 13.5.1:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period December 2021 through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **11. Oracle Communications EAGLE LNP Application Processor (ELAP) 10.2.1:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period November 2021 through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **12. Oracle GoldenGate Plug-in for Oracle Enterprise Manager 13.5.2 and later**: The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2026. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **13. Oracle Communications Unified Assurance 5.5.9 and later releases**: The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period July 2023 through December 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **14. Oracle Communications Diameter Signaling Router 8.6:** The Extended Support fee will be waived through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **15. Oracle Communications Policy Management 12.6:** The Extended Support fee will be waived through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **16. MetaSolv Solution 6.3.1:** The Extended Support fee will be waived from **January 1, 2026 through December 31, 2027.** During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **17. Oracle Communications User Data Repository 12.11.2:** The Extended Support fee will be waived through April 2024. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in the Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.
- **18. Java SE 11:** The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period October 2023 throughJanuary 2032. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in Oracle Technical Support Levels section below.

19. Billing and Revenue Management Suite 12.0: The Extended Support fee will be waived for the period January 2025 through December 2025. During this period, you will receive Extended Support as described in Oracle Technical Support Levels section below. The suite includes: Billing and Revenue Management, Pricing Design Center, Offline Mediation Controller, Convergent Charging Controller and Network Charging and Control.

4. ORACLE TECHNICAL SUPPORT LEVELS

Software Update License & Support

Program releases in the Premier Support phase of Oracle's product support lifecycle will receive Software Update License & Support, as set forth in the Lifetime Support Section above. Software Update License & Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts and critical patch updates
- Tax, legal and regulatory updates (availability may vary by country and/or program)
- Upgrade scripts (availability may vary by program)
- Certification with most new third-party products/versions (availability may vary by program)
- Major product and technology releases, if and when made available at Oracle's discretion, which
 may include general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases and documentation
 updates
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week. Access to the customer support systems specified in the Web-Based Customer Support Systems section below (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online, unless stated otherwise.
- Regulatory updates for certain Oracle Financial Services and Oracle Banking Platform programs and jurisdictions will be delivered in accordance with the Oracle Financial Services Software and Oracle Banking Platform Regulatory Updates Delivery Policy document located here.
- Current licensees of MySQL Classic Edition Annual Subscription, MySQL Cluster Carrier Grade
 Edition Annual Subscription, MySQL Enterprise Edition Annual Subscription or MySQL Standard
 Edition Annual Subscription ("MySQL Subscription"), may receive Software Update License &
 Support (SULS) for MySQL Community Edition*, except that SULS for MySQL Community
 Edition does not include Updates of any kind. MySQL Community Edition may not contain all
 of the features and functionality of the programs contained in the MySQL
 Subscription. (*Community Edition refers to MySQL licensed under the GPL license.)
- For Oracle VM VirtualBox Enterprise, Software Update License & Support (SULS) is limited to the platforms specified here. SULS is not available for Oracle VM VirtualBox Enterprise features noted as experimental; such features are specified in the Oracle VM VirtualBox User Manual located here
- Access to Platinum Services as described at: http://www.oracle.com/us/support/library/platinum-services-policies-1652886.pdf
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours
- Response times, in general, are as set forth in Section 9, and any product exceptions are listed below in this Section 4

Software Update License & Support for the Audit Vault and Database Firewall program (formerly the Database Firewall and Database Firewall Management Server programs) consists of:

- The Software Update License & Support described above
- 24x7 access to Oracle Unbreakable Linux Network

- Hardware Certification¹
- Backport of fixes, using commercially reasonable efforts, for any Oracle Linux program released from Oracle for a period of six months from the date the next release of the Oracle Linux program becomes generally available; the Backport Schedule is available at http://linux.oracle.com/backport-schedule.html

Note: Hardware certification will be provided for the first six years from the date a release of the Oracle Linux program becomes generally available. After six years, hardware certification may be provided at Oracle's sole discretion; however, Oracle is under no obligation to provide such hardware certification.

Limited Software Update License & Support is available for the Phase Forward programs (i.e., Clinical Development Center, Clintrial, Empirica (Gateway, Signal, Trace), InForm, and LabPas). The limited Software Update License & Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts and critical patch updates
- Assistance with service requests during normal business hours
- Ability to log service requests as specified in the following link: https://www.oracle.com/industries/health-sciences/support.html
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Software Update License & Support for the qualifying Oracle Hospitality and Oracle Food and Beverage programs listed here: http://www.oracle.com/us/support/library/hospitality-programs-3840568.pdf ("Hospitality Programs") consists of:

- The Software Update License & Support described above
- First Line Support (Level 1)

For the qualifying Oracle Hospitality and Oracle Food and Beverage programs only, reasonable efforts will be made to respond to service requests per the Response Times set forth in the guidelines below; however, Oracle's failure to adhere to the times stated will not constitute a breach by Oracle. The guidelines are for informational purposes only and subject to change at Oracle's discretion.

SEVERITY LEVEL ¹	RESPONSE TIME GOAL	UPDATE OR RESOLUTION
Severity 1	5 minutes	1 hour
Severity 2	2 hours	6 hours
Severity 3	8 hours	24 hours
Severity 4	24 hours	48 hours

For purposes of the above table, the following definitions apply:

- Severity 1: Major system disruption (e.g., a major disruption in business-critical system operability or functionality, server crash or total system failure)
- Severity 2: Severe system disruption (e.g., a severe disruption in business-critical functionality that does not impact the entire system such as: significant number of workstations/terminals unable to perform or post transactions, loss of ability to perform payment functions, total loss of reporting (local or hosted), loss of all printing, failure to reset totals or complete

- EOD/SOD/Night Audit, reposting for a given date or range of date, very slow page or image loading, or inaccessible tools interface)
- Severity 3: Single function failure (e.g., a minor disruption in operability or functionality that
 does not impact the entire system such as: timekeeping issues, isolated printing failure, isolated
 workstation/terminal failure, failure to view a single report, password resets, or non-functional
 loyalty programs).
- Severity 4: Minor/Procedural issue or question (e.g., programming or configuration related questions, questions relating to functionality, operability, or formatting or cosmetic problems)

Extended Support

Extended Support may be available for certain Oracle program releases after Premier Support expires, as set forth in the Lifetime Support section above. When Extended Support is offered, it is generally available for three years following the expiration of Premier Support and only for the terminal patchset release of a program. In order to receive Extended Support, you must continue to pay the technical support fee for SULS/Premier Support and purchase Extended Support. Unless otherwise stated in this section, Extended Support for eligible program releases consists of the following:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates
- Tax, legal and regulatory updates (availability may vary by country and/or program)
- Upgrade scripts (availability may vary by program)
- Major product and technology releases, if and when made available at Oracle's discretion, which
 may include general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases and documentation
 updates
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days per week
- Regulatory updates for certain Oracle Financial Services and Oracle Banking Platform programs and jurisdictions will be delivered in accordance with the Oracle Financial Services Software and Oracle Banking Platform Regulatory Updates Delivery Policy document located here
- Access to the customer support systems specified in the Web-Based Customer Support Systems section below (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online, unless stated otherwise
- Access to Platinum Services as described at: http://www.oracle.com/us/support/library/platinum-services-policies-1652886.pdf
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Extended Support does not include:

Certification with new third party products/versions

Extended Support for Java SE - Extended Support for eligible Java SE program releases consists of:

- Bug fixes, security fixes and minor updates
- Upgrade tools
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support

Sustaining Support will be available after Premier Support expires, as set forth in the Lifetime Support section above. As program releases under Sustaining Support are no longer fully supported,

information and skills regarding those releases may be limited. The availability of hardware systems to run such program releases may also be limited. Unless otherwise stated in this section, program releases eligible for Sustaining Support will receive Software Update License & Support limited to the following:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates created during Premier Support and Extended Support (if offered and only after the Extended Support period ends)
- Tax, legal, and regulatory updates (availability may vary by country and/or program) created during Premier Support and Extended Support (if offered and only after the Extended Support Period ends)
- Upgrade scripts (availability may vary by program) created during Premier Support and Extended Support (if offered and only after the Extended Support Period ends)
- Major product and technology releases, if and when made available at Oracle's discretion, which
 may include general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases, and documentation
 updates
- Assistance with service requests, on a commercially reasonable basis, 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to the customer support systems specified in the Web-Based Customer Support Systems section below (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online, unless stated otherwise
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support does not include:

- New program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates
- New tax, legal, and regulatory updates
- New upgrade scripts
- Certification with new third party products/versions
- 24 hour commitment and response guidelines for Severity 1 service requests as defined in section 9 Severity Definitions
- Previously released fixes or updates that Oracle no longer supports

Sustaining Support for Oracle Linux - Oracle Linux program releases eligible for Sustaining Support will receive Software Update License & Support limited to the following:

- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- 24x7 access to Oracle Unbreakable Linux Network
- Access to patches, fixes, and security alerts created during the Premier Support period

Sustaining Support for the Oracle Linux programs does not include:

- Access to new patches, fixes, and security alerts
- 24 hour commitment and response guidelines for Severity 1 service requests as defined in section 9 Severity Definitions
- Hardware certification
- Backport of fixes

Sustaining Support for Java SE - Java SE program releases eligible for Sustaining Support will receive Java SE Support limited to the following:

 Minor updates and bug and security fixes created during Premier Support and Extended Support (if offered and only after the Extended Support Period ends)

- Upgrade tools created during Premier Support and Extended Support (if offered and only after the Extended Support Period ends)
- Assistance with service requests, on a commercially reasonable basis, 24 hours per day, 7 days per week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support for the Java SE program releases does not include:

- New minor updates and bug and security fixes
- New upgrade tools
- 24 hour commitment and response guidelines for Severity 1 service requests as defined in section 9 Severity Definitions
- Previously released fixes or updates that Oracle no longer supports

Sustaining Support for Nimbula – Nimbula program releases eligible for Sustaining Support will receive Software Update License & Support limited to the following:

- Access to existing program updates and fixes only (i.e., new program updates and fixes will not be provided)
- Assistance with service requests during normal business hours.
- Ability to log service requests via the following email: Nimbula-Support WW@oracle.com
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support for the Nimbula program releases does not include:

- Access to new program updates and fixes
- 24 hour commitment and response guidelines for Severity 1 service requests as defined in section 9 Severity Definitions

Oracle Communications Network Software Premier & Sustaining Support

Oracle Communications Network Software Premier Support is available, as set forth in the Lifetime Support section above, for the following program categories (collectively "Oracle Communications Network Premier Programs"): Diameter Signaling Router Network Function Edition; Integrated Diameter Intelligence Hub - Network Function Editions; Common Signaling; Performance Intelligence Center Network Function Edition; Policy Management Network Function Edition; Cloud Native Core; User Data Repository Network Function Edition; Perpetual license of Session Border Controller, Subscriber-Aware Load Balancer, Core Session Manager, Session Router, Mobile Security Gateway, Operations Monitor, Control Plane Monitor, Fraud Monitor, Application Orchestrator, and Evolved Communications Application Server; Net-Net Central applications; Elastic Charging Engine and Charging Traffic Monitor; Network Service Orchestration; Convergent Charging Controller; Recharge and Voucher Management; Notification Gateway; Unified Topology; Federated Assurance; Unified Assurance; Visualized Assurance; Unified Assurance Event History; and Unified Assurance Event History and Analytics.

Oracle Communications Network Software Premier Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts and critical patch updates
- Upgrade scripts (availability may vary by program)
- Certification with most new third-party products/versions (availability may vary by program)

- Major product and technology releases, if and when made available at Oracle's discretion, which
 may include general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases, and documentation
 updates
- Remote installation of Diameter Signaling Router Network Function Edition, Integrated Diameter Intelligence Hub - Network Function Editions, Common Signaling, Performance Intelligence Center Network Function Edition, Policy Management Network Function Edition, and User Data Repository Network Function Edition
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

For Oracle Communications Network Software Premier Support only, reasonable efforts will be made to respond to service requests per the Response Times set forth in the guidelines below; however, Oracle's failure to adhere to the times stated will not constitute a breach by Oracle. The guidelines are for informational purposes only and subject to change at Oracle's discretion.

SEVERITY LEVEL	RESPONSE TIME ¹	REMOTE RESTORATION TIME ¹	RESOLUTION TIME ¹
Severity 1	15 minutes	6 hours	30 calendar days
Severity 2	15 minutes	48 hours	30 calendar days
Severity 3	N/A	N/A	180 calendar days

- 1. For purposes of the above table, the following definitions apply:
 - Response Time The elapsed time beginning when you create a service request until Oracle first responds to you.
 - Remote Restoration Time The elapsed time beginning when Oracle achieves remote
 access to the applicable program and when Oracle notifies you that a solution has been
 offered. The Remote Restoration Time frames do not apply if program code changes are
 required.
 - Resolution Time The elapsed time beginning when you create a service request to when your issue is resolved.

Certain Oracle Communications Network Premier Program releases may be eligible to receive Oracle Communications Network Software Sustaining Support. Oracle Communications Network Software Sustaining Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates, created during the Premier Support period
- Upgrade scripts (availability may vary by program) created during the Premier Support period
- Major product and technology releases, if and when made available at Oracle's discretion, which
 may include general maintenance releases, selected functionality releases and documentation
 updates.
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week

- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support for the Oracle Communications Network Premier Program releases does not include:

- New program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates
- Remote installation of Oracle Communications Network Premier Programs
- New upgrade scripts
- Certification with new third party products/versions
- Response Times identified above
- Previously released fixes or updates that Oracle no longer supports

Oracle Communications Network Software Support & Sustaining Support

Oracle Communications Network Software Support is available for the following program categories (collectively "Oracle Communications Network Software Programs"), as set forth in the Lifetime Support section above: Oracle Communications EAGLE (non ISO), Oracle Communications Performance Intelligence Center, Oracle Communications Diameter Signaling Router, Oracle Communications Policy Management, Oracle Communications User Data Repository, and Oracle Communications Subscriber Data Management. Oracle Communications Network Software Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates
- Certification with most new third-party products/versions (availability may vary by program)
- Remote installation of Oracle Communications Network Software Programs
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

For Oracle Communications Network Software Support only, reasonable efforts will be made to respond to service requests per the Response Times set forth in the guidelines below; however, Oracle's failure to adhere to the times stated will not constitute a breach by Oracle. The guidelines are for informational purposes only and subject to change at Oracle's discretion.

SEVERITY LEVEL	RESPONSE TIME ¹	REMOTE RESTORATION TIME ¹	RESOLUTION TIME ¹
Severity 1	15 minutes	6 hours	30 calendar days
Severity 2	15 minutes	48 hours	30 calendar days
Severity 3	N/A	N/A	180 calendar days

- 1. For purposes of the above table, the following definitions apply:
 - Response Time The elapsed time beginning when you create a service request until Oracle first responds to you.
 - Remote Restoration Time The elapsed time beginning when Oracle achieves remote access to the applicable program and when Oracle notifies you that a solution has been

- offered. The Remote Restoration Time frames do not apply if program code changes are required.
- Resolution Time The elapsed time beginning when you create a service request to when your issue is resolved.

Certain Oracle Communications Network Software Program releases may be eligible to receive Oracle Communications Network Software Sustaining Support. Oracle Communications Network Software Sustaining Support consists of:

- Program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates created during the Support period
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Sustaining Support for the Oracle Communications Network Software Program releases does not include:

- New program updates, fixes, security alerts, and critical patch updates
- Remote installation of Oracle Communications Network Software
- Certification with new third party products/versions
- Response Times identified above
- Previously released fixes or updates that Oracle no longer supports

5. ADDITIONAL SUPPORT SERVICES AVAILABLE FOR PURCHASE

Incident Server Support Package

Incident Server Support provides web-based technical support on a per server basis in packages of 10 service requests to be used within a 12 month period. Any unused service requests at the end of the support period shall expire. Incident Server Support for a program may be acquired with the initial program license purchase and, if acquired with such purchase, may be renewed for subsequent support periods for as long as Premier Support is available for your Oracle program license. If you want to obtain Software Update License & Support, it will be subject to Oracle's reinstatement policies in effect at the time Software Update License & Support is acquired. Incident Server Support is available for the following across all platforms:

- Oracle Database Incident Server Support Package: Oracle Database Enterprise Edition, Oracle Database Standard Edition, Oracle Database Standard Edition One, Partitioning, and Real Application Clusters
- Oracle Application Incident Server Support Package: Internet Application Server Enterprise Edition Internet Application Server Standard Edition, and Internet Application Server Java Edition

Incident Server Support consists of:

- 10 service requests
- Access to My Oracle Support (24x7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Access to downloadable software patches and patchsets

Service requests requiring resolution of a program bug will not be counted against your overall service request total. Your access to Incident Server Support services, including My Oracle Support, ends on the earlier of (i) expiration of the support period; or (ii) resolution of your final service request. The Incident Server Support Packages do not include updates and may not be used, purchased, or sold in conjunction with any other support offering.

If you renew Incident Server Support Package, your renewal fee for such services will be based on Oracle's Incident Server Support Package pricing policies in effect at the time of renewal. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order. Incident Server Support Package is not subject to the Reinstatement of Oracle Technical Support section above.

Oracle Java Development Tools Support

Oracle Java Development Tools Support is available for the following programs: Sun NetBeans, Oracle Enterprise Pack for Eclipse, and Oracle JDeveloper (downloaded from the Oracle Technology Network after June 28, 2005). If you acquire Oracle Java Development Tools Support, you will receive support for all of the programs included above.

Oracle Java Development Tools Support consists of:

- Access to patches and fixes
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Oracle Java Development Tools Support does not include upgrades to new program releases. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Oracle Developer Studio Tools Support

Oracle Developer Studio Tools Support is available for the Oracle Developer Studio program. Oracle Developer Studio Tools Support consists of:

- Access to patches and fixes
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Oracle Developer Studio Tools Support does not include upgrades to new program releases or access to Oracle Solaris or Oracle Linux updates, fixes or patches. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to this service, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Oracle Application Development Framework Essentials Support

Oracle Application Development Framework Essentials Support is available for Oracle Application Development Framework (ADF) Essentials program releases.

Oracle Application Development Framework Essentials Support consists of:

- Access to patches and fixes
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week

- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Oracle Application Development Framework Essentials Support does not include upgrades to new program releases. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Java SE Support and Java SE Support For Independent Software Vendors

As of June 1, 2017, the Java SE Support and Java SE Support for Independent Software Vendors ("ISVs") offerings are available for renewal only. These offerings are only in support of Java SE 7 program release.

Java SE Support and Java SE Support for ISVs consist of:

- Bug fixes, security fixes and minor updates
- Upgrade tools
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days per week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

These offerings are available for the following period:

AVAILABILITY

Through April 30, 2020

The services described above are in support of licenses you acquired separately. Bug fixes, security fixes and any updates received as part of the services described above shall be provided under the terms of the appropriate license agreement that you accepted upon downloading and/or installing the Java SE program. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Oracle Java Embedded Development Support and Oracle Java Embedded Suite Development Support

Oracle Java Embedded Development Support is available for Oracle Java SE Embedded or Oracle Java ME Embedded program releases per Standard Binary. Oracle Java Embedded Suite Development Support is available for the Oracle Java Embedded Suite.

Both Oracle Java Embedded Development Support and Oracle Java Embedded Suite Development Support consist of:

- Bug fixes, security fixes and minor updates
- Upgrade tools
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days per week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based customer support systems), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

If you acquire Oracle Java Embedded Development Support or Oracle Java Embedded Suite Development Support, the services described above are in support of licenses you acquired separately. Bug fixes, security fixes and any updates received as part of the services described above shall be provided under the terms of the appropriate license agreement that you accepted upon downloading and/or installing the Oracle Java SE Embedded, Oracle Java ME Embedded programs or Oracle Java Embedded Suite. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Oracle Solaris 10 Container Support

Oracle Solaris 10 Container Support is available for the Oracle Solaris 10 Container program.

Oracle Solaris 10 Container Support consists of:

- Access to Solaris 10 patches and fixes; including those created during Extended Support if offered
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

Oracle Solaris 10 Container Support does not include upgrades to new program releases.

NoSQL Database Community Edition Support

NoSQL Database Community Edition Support is available for NoSQL Database Community Edition program releases.

NoSQL Database Community Edition Support consists of:

- Access to patches and fixes
- Assistance with service requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week
- Access to My Oracle Support (24 x 7 web-based technical support system), including the ability to log service requests online
- Non-technical customer service during normal business hours

NoSQL Database Community Edition Support does not include upgrades to new program releases. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order.

Service Request Packages

Service Request Packages are made available to members of the Oracle Partner Network. Service Request Packages provide web-based technical support in packages of 10 or 25 service requests, do not include updates, and are not available for all programs. Please contact your point of contact at http://partner.oracle.com for program availability.

Service Request Packages are valid for one year from the date of purchase. Any unused service request(s) will expire at the earlier of (i) the end of such year, or (ii) the end of your OPN membership term if such membership is not renewed. Access to log service requests will be restricted at the same time the final service request is resolved.

Customer Success Services

If you acquire any of the following Customer Success Services on your order, Oracle will provide the services as described in the applicable service description in the Annual, Fixed Scope, and Time and

Material Services - Service Descriptions document, or the applicable standalone service description indicated below, published on http://www.oracle.com/contracts:

- Oracle Priority Support
- Oracle Priority Support Advantage
- Oracle Functional Help Desk for Oracle Hospitality
- Oracle Standard Software Installation and Configuration for Systems and Software
- Oracle Database Upgrade Service for Software

Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite

Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite is available for Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.1.3. If You acquire Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite on your order, Oracle will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide the following for one calendar year:

- Code fixes, data fixes, and/or workarounds for Severity 1 and Severity 2 service requests ("SRs")
- Periodic critical security patches and updates, on a schedule determined by Oracle, provided solely at Oracle's discretion for issues that pose a potential Severity 1 or Severity 2 business risk
- Product localizations for the applicable contract year, provided at Oracle's discretion, limited to legislative or regulatory updates backported from Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.2, including United States Tax Form 1099
- Periodic payroll tax updates, including start-of-year and end-of-year updates that are applicable during the contract year
- One (1) upgrade planning presentation delivered remotely by Oracle to provide an overview of the new features included with Oracle E-Business Suite Release 12.2 and guidance related to Your upgrade preparation and planning

The scope of this service includes commercially reasonable efforts to provide support and fixes for the Oracle E-Business Suite application and the technology components and versions embedded in the Oracle E-Business Suite application-tier technology stack. Details regarding the versions and patch levels for the Oracle E-Business Suite application-tier technology stack can be found on My Oracle Support in Infrastructure Requirements for Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 (Doc ID 2647635.1). Support for versions of the Oracle Database used with Oracle E-Business Suite is subject to separate standard support policies and timelines for Oracle Database.

This service is available for the following periods:

BUSINESS CRITICAL FIXES AND LIMITED UPDATES FOR ORACLE E-BUSINESS SUITE	AVAILABILITY
12.1.3	January 01, 2024 – December 31, 2024 (not available for Windows Server OS) January 01, 2025 – December 31, 2025 (not available for Windows Server OS)

The following restrictions and limitations apply:

- Effective January 01, 2024, patches and updates will no longer be available for Microsoft Windows Server operating system
- Your licensed Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 must be currently supported with Software Update License & Support
- Except where otherwise explicitly included, external integrations, products, and technologies that are used in conjunction with Oracle E-Business Suite are excluded and subject to their own standard support policies and timelines
- Oracle reserves the right to exclude some Oracle E-Business Suite products from this service.
 The current list of excluded products are noted on My Oracle Support in <u>Products Excluded from Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 (Doc ID 2658179.1)</u>
- The Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 environment must be updated to the minimum patch levels as described on My Oracle Support in Minimum Code Level Requirements for Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 (Doc ID 2658189.1)
- Any updates that require architectural changes to the Oracle E-Business Suite application are specifically excluded from this service, including proposed changes to the Brazilian tax law
- Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 will not be available any sooner than updates for a subsequent release of Oracle E-Business Suite (e.g., Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.2 or higher) and such updates will be limited in scope to features that are available with such subsequent release of Oracle E-Business Suite (e.g., Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.2 or higher), excluding any deprecated features
- Backporting of legislative or regulatory updates are provided at Oracle's discretion and will be limited to changes that are architecturally compatible with Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3.
- Payroll tax updates will be limited to United States, Canada, and the United Kingdom. All other
 countries and jurisdictions are specifically excluded from this service but may be available as a
 separate service from Oracle subject to additional fees
- Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite for CY25 will include a legislative update for UK payroll for the beginning of the UK 2025-26 payroll year (beginning April 2025) but will not include the year end update that would apply to the end of the 2025-26 UK payroll year
- The scope of this service also specifically excludes the following:
 - o Any third party program or third party application, and/or any customizations
 - New certifications or integrations with other Oracle products or third party products, including browsers and operating systems
 - Functional upgrades of any kind, except the ERP product localizations explicitly included above
- Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 will not be certified with the Oracle 23AI Database

Oracle Hospitality Cruise Help Desk and Monitoring

If you acquire Oracle Hospitality Cruise Help Desk and Monitoring on your order, Oracle will provide Oracle Hospitality Cruise Help Desk and Monitoring as described here.

Global Payroll Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite

Global Payroll Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite is available for select countries for Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.1.3. If you acquire Global Payroll Updates for Oracle E-Business Suite, Oracle will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide one calendar year of periodic payroll and

application payroll tax updates, including start-of-year updates, end-of-year updates, and payroll tax updates that are applicable for the contract year.

Global Payroll updates for Oracle E-Business Suite is available only for the applicable Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 payroll module(s) and the country specified in Your order.

This ervice is available only for the following periods ("calendar year"):

Payroll Update Availability for E-Business Suite 12.1.3

January 01, 2024 – December 31, 2024 (Available only for Australia)

The following restrictions and limitations apply:

- Your licensed Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 must be currently supported with Software Update License & Support.
- You must separately purchase and maintain Business Critical Fixes and Limited Updates for Oracle
 E-Business Suite for the duration of Global Payroll Updates for E-Business Suite, subject to all
 associated restrictions and limitations.
- Except where otherwise explicitly included, external integrations, products, and technologies that
 are used in conjunction with Oracle E-Business Suite are excluded and subject to their own
 standard support policies and timelines.
- Payroll updates for Oracle E-Business Suite 12.1.3 are limited to backports made available under a subsequent release of Oracle E-Business Suite (e.g., Oracle E-Business Suite release 12.2 or higher), excluding any updates that require architectural changes.
- Third party software, third party applications, and/or customizations are explicitly excluded.
- New certifications and/or integrations with other Oracle products or third party software, including browsers and operating systems, are explicitly excluded.

Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM

Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM is available for the PeopleSoft Human Capital Management (HCM) and Financials and Supply Chain Management (FSCM) releases identified in the Availability Matrix below ("PeopleSoft Enterprise Applications").

If you acquire Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM on your order, Oracle will provide one calendar year of Severity 1 fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 updates.

This service is available for the following periods:

PEOPLESOFT HCM AND FSCM PROGRAM RELEASE	AVAILABILITY
9.1	January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2024 January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025

The following restrictions and limitations apply:

- Your licensed PeopleSoft Enterprise Applications must be currently supported with Software Update License & Support. Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM will be delivered through My Oracle Support. The fixes and updates for the PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM releases covered by this service will be limited to functionality provided with the most current PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM release (e.g., PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM release 9.2), and excludes any deprecated product features. Details regarding deprecated functionality can be found on My Oracle Support in the <u>Lifetime Support Summary for PeopleSoft Releases</u> (Doc ID 2238983.2) document.
- Oracle will not provide fixes or updates any sooner or with any greater scope than what is made available with the most current release of PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM, as determined solely at Oracle's discretion.
- Fixes and critical patches from PeopleTools are specifically excluded. It is Your sole responsibility to be on the supported version of PeopleTools as detailed in the <u>Lifetime Support Summary for PeopleSoft Releases (Doc ID 2238983.2)</u> document.
- You must have an active cloud subscription to one or more of the following Cloud Services to remain eligible for this service:
 - Oracle Fusion Enterprise Resource Planning Cloud Service
 - o Oracle Fusion Human Capital Management Cloud Service

If you renew Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM, your renewal fee for such services will be based on the current pricing policies in effect at the time of renewal. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to these services, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order. Severity 1 Fixes and United States Tax Form 1099 Updates for PeopleSoft HCM and FSCM is not subject to the Reinstatement policies stated above.

Legislative Updates for PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll Localizations

Legislative Updates for PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll Localizations ("PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations") is available for select countries for Oracle PeopleSoft HCM release 9.2. If you acquire PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations, Oracle will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide one calendar year of payroll related legislative updates for PeopleSoft HCM 9.2 Global Payroll and Absence Management, including start-of-year updates and end-of-year updates.

PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations is available only for the applicable Oracle PeopleSoft HCM Release 9.2 payroll modules and the countries identified in Your order.

This service is available only for the following periods ("calendar year"):

Legislative Updates for PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll Localizations	AVAILABILITY	
Peoplesoft HCM Release 9.2	January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2024 January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025 Program Planned Beyond 2025	

The following restrictions and limitations apply:

- Your licensed PeopleSoft HCM Release 9.2 must be currently supported with Software Update License & Support. PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations will be delivered through My Oracle Support.
- 2. Any module other than PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll and Absence Management, as indicated above, is specifically excluded, including, but not limited to the Human Resource module.
- 3. Legislative updates for PeopleSoft 9.2 Global Payroll Localizations are not cumulative and You must acquire this service for each available calendar without skipping any years.
- 4. Contractual caps on technical support fees do not apply to PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations, unless expressly stated otherwise in the applicable order. PeopleSoft 9.2 Payroll Localizations are not subject to the Reinstatement of Oracle Technical Support section above.

Severity 1 Fixes for Fusion Middleware 11g

Severity 1 Fixes for Fusion Middleware 11g for CY24 and CY25 is available only for the specific Fusion Middleware components included with Your license that are identified in the table below, ("Supported FMW 11g Products") and for the periods listed below:

FMW 11g Products	Version	Availability
Oracle Access Manager (OAM) (see limitations in bullet 9. below)	11.1.2.3.0	
Oracle Application Development Framework (ADF)	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle Business Activity Monitoring (BAM)	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle BPEL Process Manager	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle Business Intelligence Enterprise Edition (OBIEE)	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle Business Intelligence Publisher	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle Business Process Management Suite	11.1.1.9.0	
Oracle Coherence	3.7.1	

Oracle Data Integrator	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle HTTP Server	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle Identity Manager (OIM)	11.1.2.3.0
Oracle Internet Directory (OID)	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle JDeveloper	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle Service Bus (OSB)	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle SOA Suite	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle Traffic Director	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle Unified Directory (OUD)	11.1.2.3.0
Oracle Virtual Directory (OVD)	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle WebCenter Content	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle WebCenter Portal	11.1.1.9.0
Oracle WebLogic Server	10.3.6.0

January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2024 January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025

If you purchase Severity 1 Fixes for Fusion Middleware 11g for CY24 or CY25 on Your order, You agree to review Your strategic upgrade plan with Oracle. Oracle will provide Severity 1 Fixes, critical security updates, and upgrade advice for the Supported FMW 11g Products for your Production environments for one calendar year, including the following:

- 1. Workarounds and/or fixes for Severity 1 service requests ("SRs") delivered by Oracle through My Oracle Support using commercially reasonable efforts.
- 2. Critical security patches provided solely at Oracle's discretion for issues that pose a potential Severity 1 business risk, and subject to the limitations defined below.
- 3. One Fusion Middleware 11g upgrade planning workshop ("Workshop") that includes:
 - Two remote sessions to present an overview of the new features included in the OracleFusion Middleware release 12c or higher that is covered by Software Update License & Support;
 - ii Guidance and advice delivered remotely by Oracle regarding Your Oracle Fusion Middleware 11g upgrade preparation and planning, limited to four participants namedby You.
- 4. An assigned Technical Account Manager (TAM) that serves as an escalation point of contact for assistance with patch download or installation issues.

Severity 1 Fixes for Oracle Fusion Middleware 11g for CY24 and CY25 is subject to the following limitations and exclusions:

- 1. Your Supported FMW 11g Products must be currently supported with Software Update License& Support.
- 2. Proactive quarterly security updates and proactive bundle patches are specifically excluded.
- 3. Support is limited to the Supported FMW 11g Products included with Your license that are specified in the table above and that are certified with Java Development Kit (JDK) 7.

- 4. Support for any Java products, including JDK 7, is specifically excluded from Severity 1 Fixes for Fusion Middleware 11g; Java products are subject to separate Java product support policies and timelines, including any required JDK 7.
- 5. Any functional updates, enhancements, or issues associated with Third Party Software, including updates to cryptography functionality, are specifically excluded.
- 6. Any activities related to new certifications, specifications, or standards, including cryptographic APIs of any kind, including certification with new browsers and/or operating system releases, are specifically excluded.
- 7. Embedded components in the Oracle WebLogic Server that rely upon desupported releases of Java products are excluded.
- 8. Support for the Supported FMW 11g Products is available only for the Linux platform. The Linux platform must be on aversion currently supported by the vendor with Error Correction Support.
- 9. After March 31, 2024, Oracle Access Manager (OAM) will only be supported for Open mode/Cert mode configurations. Please refer to the following MOS KM Notes for details and how to change configurations:
 - March 2024 Expiration Of The Oracle Access Manager (OAM) Out Of The Box Certificates (<u>Doc ID 2949379.1</u>)
 - Available Solutions To Address The Expiring (March 2024) Out Of The Box Certificates
 Used By Oracle Access Manager (OAM) (<u>Doc ID 2943611.1</u>)

Oracle Linux Support Services

Oracle offers Oracle Linux support services to customers, regardless of whether or not they are using Oracle programs. For information about the available services, please refer to the Oracle Open Source Support Policies available at http://www.oracle.com/support/policies.html.

Oracle VM Support Services

Oracle offers Oracle VM support services to customers, regardless of whether or not they are using Oracle programs. For information about the available services, please refer to the Oracle Open Source Support Policies available at http://www.oracle.com/support/policies.html.

Oracle Verrazzano Support Services

Oracle offers Oracle Verrazzano support services to customers, regardless of whether or not they are using Oracle programs. For information about the available services, please refer to the Oracle Open Source Support Policies available at http://www.oracle.com/support/policies.html.

Oracle Utilities Live Energy Connect Programs Support

If you acquired support services for Oracle Utilities Live Energy Connect Programs on your order prior to August 3, 2020, Oracle will provide the services as described in the <u>Oracle Software Technical Support Policies for Oracle Utilities Live Energy Connect Programs</u>. If your order for support services for Oracle Utilities Live Energy Connect Programs is dated subsequent to August 3, 2020, unless otherwise stated on your order, Oracle will provide those services as described in the then-current Oracle Software Technical Support Policies.

6. WEB-BASED CUSTOMER SUPPORT SYSTEMS

My Oracle Support

My Oracle Support is Oracle's customer support web site for software support. Access to My Oracle Support is governed by the <u>Oracle Support Portal Terms of Use</u> posted on the My Oracle Support web site. The Oracle Support Portal Terms of Use are subject to change at Oracle's discretion. Access to My Oracle Support is limited to your designated technical contacts.

Customer Support Portal for Hospitality and Food & Beverage

For Hospitality and Food & Beverage customers, Oracle's software support website can be found here. Access to the Customer Support Portal for Hospitality and Food & Beverage is governed by Oracle's Support Portal Terms of Use are subject to change at Oracle's discretion.

Access to the Customer Support Portal for Hospitality and Food & Beverage is limited to your designated technical contacts.

The following Oracle programs are not currently supported under My Oracle Support or the Customer Support Portal for Hospitality and Food & Beverage: Phase Forward (i.e., InForm, InForm CRF Submit, Central Designer, Central Coding, Clinical Development Center, Clintrial, Empirica (Gateway, Inspections, Signal, Study, Topics, Trace), and LabPas), Nimbula and MS CRM (for MICROS Systems).

For web-based customer support for the Phase Forward programs listed above, please refer to the Health Sciences License Support page.

Oracle Unbreakable Linux Network

Access to the Oracle Unbreakable Linux Network is included with Software Update License & Support for the Audit Vault and Database Firewall program (formerly the Database Firewall and Database Firewall Management Server programs).

7. TOOLS USED TO PERFORM TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES

Oracle may make available collaboration tools (such as tools that enable Oracle, with your consent, to access your computer system (e.g., Oracle Web Conferencing)) and software tools (such as tools to assist in the collection and transmission of configuration data (e.g., Oracle Configuration Manager)) to assist with issue resolution. The tools are licensed under the <u>Oracle Support Portal Terms of Use</u>, and may be subject to additional terms provided with the tools. Some of the tools are designed to collect information concerning the configuration of your computer environment ("tools data") and not access, collect or store any personally identifiable information (except for technical support contact information) or business data files residing in your computer environment. By using the tools, you consent to the transmission of your tools data to Oracle for the purposes of providing reactive and proactive technical support services. In addition, the tools data may be used by Oracle to assist you in managing your Oracle product portfolio, for license and services compliance and to help Oracle improve upon product and service offerings.

Some of the tools may be designed to connect automatically or on a periodic basis and you may not receive a separate notice upon connection. You are responsible for maintaining the telecom gateway through which the tools communicate tools data to Oracle. Use of the tools is voluntary; however, refusal to use the tools may impede Oracle's ability to provide technical support services to you.

Further details about some of the current tools Oracle uses to provide technical support services, the data collected, and how the data is used, are described in the Global Customer Support Security Practices and on My Oracle Support. You may also contact your Oracle sales representative or call your local Customer Support office for more details regarding the tools and availability.

If Oracle expressly provides in the tools documentation, technical support policies, an order, or readme that a tool is provided under separate license terms ("Separate Terms") then the Separate Terms shall govern your access and use of the tool. Embedded third party software, or third party software, licensed under Separate Terms (for example Mozilla and LGPL) may be required to access or run the tools per the tools documentation or readme. Your rights to use a tool or software licensed under Separate Terms shall not be restricted or modified in any way by your agreement with Oracle.

8. GLOBAL CUSTOMER SUPPORT DATA PROTECTION PRACTICES

To the extent you provide personal information to Oracle as part of Oracle's provision of technical support services, Oracle will comply with the following:

- Oracle's Services Privacy Policy, available at https://www.oracle.com/legal/privacy/services-privacy-policy.html; and
- the applicable version of the Oracle Data Processing Agreement for Oracle Services, available at https://www.oracle.com/corporate/contracts/cloud-services/contracts.html#data-processing

In providing technical support services, Oracle will also adhere to the applicable administrative, physical, technical and other safeguards described in Oracle's <u>Global Customer Support Security Practices (PDF)</u>. The Global Customer Support Security Practices are subject to change at Oracle's discretion. However, Oracle will not materially reduce the level of security specified in the Global Customer Support Security Practices during the services period of these technical support services. You are advised to review these Global Customer Support Security Practices from time to time. To view changes that have been made, please refer to the <u>Statement of Changes</u> (PDF).

Please note that the technical support services are not designed to accommodate special security or privacy controls that may be required to store or process certain types of sensitive data. Please ensure that you do not submit any sensitive data, such as protected health information or payment card data, which requires security and privacy controls greater than or different from those specified in the <u>Global Customer Support Security Practices (PDF)</u>. Information on how you can remove sensitive data from your submission is available in My Oracle Support, <u>Doc ID 1227943.1</u>.

Notwithstanding the restriction above, if you would like to submit personal information subject to Applicable European Data Protection Law (as such term is defined in the Oracle Data Processing Agreement for Oracle Services) or protected health information ("PHI") subject to the United States Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA") to Oracle as part of receiving technical support services, you must:

• For PHI, execute a HIPAA business associate agreement (as applicable) with Oracle that specifically references and covers your technical support services;

- Submit personal information subject to Applicable European Data Protection Law or PHI only in service request attachments on the My Oracle Support customer portal;
- Not include any personal information subject to Applicable European Data Protection Law or PHI in the body of service requests (other than contact information required for Oracle to respond to the service request);
- When prompted in My Oracle Support, indicate that the service request attachment may contain
 personal information subject to Applicable European Data Protection Law (also may be
 designated as "EEA Personal Data" in My Oracle Support) or PHI.

9. SEVERITY DEFINITIONS

Service requests for supported Oracle programs may be submitted by you online through Oracle's webbased customer support systems or by telephone. The service request severity level is selected by you and Oracle and should be based on the severity definitions specified below.

Severity 1 (Critical Outage)

Your production use of the supported programs is stopped or so severely impacted that you cannot reasonably continue work. You experience a complete loss of service. The operation is mission critical to the business and the situation is an emergency. A Severity 1 service request has one or more of the following characteristics:

- Data corrupted
- A critical documented function is not available
- System hangs indefinitely, causing unacceptable or indefinite delays for resources or response
- System crashes, and crashes repeatedly after restart attempts

Reasonable efforts will be made to respond to Severity 1 service requests within one hour. For response efforts associated with Oracle Communications Network Software Premier Support and Oracle Communications Network Software Support & Sustaining Support, please see the Oracle Communications Network Premier & Sustaining Support and Oracle Communications Network Software Support & Sustaining Support sections above.

Except as otherwise specified, Oracle provides 24 hour support for Severity 1 service requests for supported programs (OSS will work 24x7 until the issue is resolved) when you remain actively engaged with OSS working toward resolution of your Severity 1 service request. You must provide OSS with a contact during this 24x7 period, either on site or by phone, to assist with data gathering, testing, and applying fixes. You are requested to propose this severity classification with great care, so that valid Severity 1 situations obtain the necessary resource allocation from Oracle.

Severity 2 (Significant Impairment)

You experience a severe loss of service. Important features are unavailable with no acceptable workaround; however, operations can continue in a restricted fashion.

Severity 3 (Technical Issue)

You experience a minor loss of service. The impact is an inconvenience, which may require a workaround to restore functionality.

Severity 4 (General Guidance)

You request information, an enhancement, or documentation clarification regarding your software but there is no impact on the operation of the software. You experience no loss of service. The result does not impede the operation of a system.

10. HYPERION AND AGILE SPECIFIC SUPPORT TERMS

For orders placed pursuant to a Hyperion master agreement or to an Agile master agreement, the following terms apply with respect to the technical support services you have ordered.

Warranties, Disclaimers, and Exclusive Remedies

Oracle warrants that technical support services will be provided in a professional manner consistent with industry standards. You must notify Oracle of any technical support services warranty deficiencies within 90 days from performance of the defective technical support services.

FOR ANY BREACH OF THE ABOVE WARRANTIES, YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, AND ORACLE'S ENTIRE LIABILITY, SHALL BE THE REPERFORMANCE OF THE DEFICIENT TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES, OR IF ORACLE CANNOT SUBSTANTIALLY CORRECT A BREACH IN A COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE MANNER, YOU MAY END THE RELEVANT TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES AND RECOVER THE FEES PAID TO ORACLE FOR THE DEFICIENT TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES.

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THESE WARRANTIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND THERE ARE NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

<u>Limitation of Liability</u>

NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, OR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS, REVENUE, DATA, OR DATA USE. ORACLE'S MAXIMUM LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO YOUR ORDER, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF THE FEES YOU PAID ORACLE UNDER YOUR ORDER, AND IF SUCH DAMAGES RESULT FROM YOUR USE OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES, SUCH LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE FEES YOU PAID ORACLE FOR THE DEFICIENT TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES GIVING RISE TO THE LIABILITY.

For orders placed pursuant to a Hyperion master agreement, the following terms also apply with respect to the technical support services you have ordered.

Nondisclosure

By virtue of your order, the parties may have access to information that is confidential to one another ("confidential information"). We each agree to disclose only information that is required for the performance of obligations under your order. Confidential information shall be limited to the terms and pricing under your order and all information clearly identified as confidential at the time of disclosure.

A party's confidential information shall not include information that: (a) is or becomes a part of the public domain through no act or omission of the other party; (b) was in the other party's lawful possession prior to the disclosure and had not been obtained by the other party either directly or indirectly from the disclosing party; (c) is lawfully disclosed to the other party by a third party without restriction on the disclosure; or (d) is independently developed by the other party.

We each agree to hold each other's confidential information in confidence for a period of three years from the date of disclosure. Also, we each agree to disclose confidential information only to those

employees or agents who are required to protect it against unauthorized disclosure. Nothing shall prevent either party from disclosing the terms or pricing under your order in any legal proceeding arising from or in connection with your order or disclosing the confidential information to a federal or state governmental entity as required by law.

11. CONTACT INFORMATION

Phone numbers and contact information can be found on Oracle's support web site located <a href="https://example.com/her